ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2002
1:12 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Ethan Berkow tz

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Al bert Kookesh
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 375

"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recoomended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 375 QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 6(FIN)
"An Act relating to required notice of eviction to nobile hone
park dwell ers and tenants before redevel opnent of the park.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 381

"An Act relating to the crinme of failure to stop at the
direction of a peace officer; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED HB 381 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 384
"An Act relating to submission of civil litigation information,;
and anending Rules 41(a) and 58, Alaska Rules of Guvil
Procedure, Rule 511(c) and (e), Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure, and Rule 503(d), Al aska Rules of Evidence."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 13, 2002



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 375
SHORT TI TLE: REVI SOR' S BI LL
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

02/ 01/ 02 2121 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 01/ 02 2121 (H JuD

02/ 11/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 11/ 02 (H) <Bi | | Post poned>

02/ 13/ 02 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: SB 6

SHORT TI TLE: MOBI LE HOVE PARK EVI CTI ON NOTI CE
SPONSOR(S):  SENATOR(S) ELLIS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 08/ 01 0013 (S PREFI LE RELEASED - 12/ 29/00

01/ 08/ 01 0013 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 08/ 01 0013 (S L&C, FIN

03/01/01 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/01/01 (S Heard & Held

03/01/01 (S M NUTE( L&C)

03/08/ 01 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 08/ 01 (S Moved CS(L&C) CQut of
Comm ttee

03/ 08/ 01 (S M NUTE( L&C)

03/09/01 0594 (S L&C RPT CS 4DP 1NR SAME TI TLE

03/09/01 0595 (S DP: PHI LLIPS, DAVIS,
AUSTERMAN, LEMAN,;

03/09/01 0595 (S NR: TORGERSON

03/09/01 0595 (S FN1: ZERQ( LAW

03/19/01 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

03/19/01 (S Heard & Held

03/19/01 (S M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 22/ 01 0768 (S FIN RPT CS 4DP 1DNP 2NR SAME
TI TLE

03/ 22/ 01 0768 (S DP: DONLEY, HOFFMAN, OLSOQN,
LEMAN;

03/ 22/ 01 0768 (S NR: KELLY, WLKEN, DNP: GREEN

03/ 22/ 01 0768 (S FN1: ZERQ LAW

03/ 22/ 01 (S FI N AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 13, 2002



532

03/ 22/ 01 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 28/ 01 (S) RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP
203

03/ 28/ 01 (S) M NUTE( RLS)

03/ 29/ 01 0858 (S) RULES TO CALENDAR 3/ 29/ 01

03/ 29/ 01 0862 (S) READ THE SECOND TI ME

03/ 29/ 01 0862 (S) FIN CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

03/ 29/ 01 0862 (S) ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

03/ 29/ 01 0862 (S) READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
6(FI N)

03/ 29/ 01 0863 (S) PASSED Y12 N7 Al

03/ 29/ 01 0867 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 29/ 01 0867 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 6( FI N)

03/ 30/ 01 0782 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS

03/ 30/ 01 0782 (H) JUD

03/ 30/ 01 0782 (H) REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

03/ 30/ 01 0794 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): GUESS,
CROFT

04/ 02/ 01 0816 (H) CROSS SPONSOR(S): MJRKOWBKI

02/ 13/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 381

SHORT TI TLE: FAI LURE TO STOP FOR PEACE COFFI CER
SPONSCR( S) : JUDI Cl ARY

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 04/ 02 2144 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 02 2144 (H JUuD

02/ 13/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JOE GREEN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 403

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 375 as chair of the
Legi sl ative Council, sponsor.

PAM FI NLEY, Revi sor of Statutes

Legi sl ati ve Counsel

Legal and Research Services Division
Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA)

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2002



Terry MIllar Legislative Ofice Building, Room 329

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the presentation of HB 375
and responded to questions.

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLI' S

Al aska State Legislature

Capitol Building, Room?9

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 6.

TYSON FI CK, Staff

to Senator Johnny Ellis

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room?9

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted with the presentation of SB 6.

BEN MARSH, Manager

Al aska Manuf act ured Housi ng Associ ati on (AVHA)

2550 Denali, Suite 1310

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of SB 6 provided
conment s.

ANGELA LI STON, Catholic Archdi ocese of Anchorage

225 Cordova Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of SB 6 provided
conment s.

JEVEL JONES, Director

Department of Health and Human Servi ces (DHHS)

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

PO Box 196650

Anchor age, Al aska 99519

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of SB 6 provided
conment s.

HEATHER M NOBREGA, Staff

to Representative Nornman Rokeberg

House Judiciary Standing Conmmttee

Al aska State Legislature

Capitol Building, Room 118

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 381 on behalf of the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conmittee.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 13, 2002



DEL SM TH, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

PO Box 111200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Assisted wth the presentation of HB 381
and responded to questions.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal D vision

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 381, explained a
proposed anmendnent fromthe DOL and responded to questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-17, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR NORVAN ROKEBERG called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12 p.m Represent ati ves
Rokeberg, Qgan, Coghill, Meyer, and Berkowitz were present at
the call to order. Representative Janes arrived as the neeting

was in progress.

HB 375 - REVISOR S BILL

Nunmber 0088

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 375, "An Act nmaking corrective anmendnents to
the Alaska Statutes as reconmmended by the revisor of statutes;
and providing for an effective date.”

Number 0099

REPRESENTATI VE JCE GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
the chair of the Legislative Council, sponsor of HB 375,
nmentioned that the commttee nay wish to address two or three
points in the bill, one of which pertains to an anmendnent nade
during a House floor session |ast year.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 13, 2002



PAM FI NLEY, Revisor of Statutes, Legislative Counsel, Legal and
Research Services Division, Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA),
with regard to Section 2, explained that l|ast year there was a
"floor anendnent” [to HB 210] that affected AS 09.10.060(c).
Before the floor anendnent, that statute contained a three-year
statute of limtations on civil actions for certain sexual abuse
cl ai ns. The floor anmendnent renoved the statute of limtations
on [felony sexual assault and felony sexual abuse of a mnor]
crimes. However, originally AS 09.10.060(c) also contained
reference to [m sdeneanor sexual abuse and m sdeneanor sexual
abuse of a mnor] crines; when it was repeal ed and reenacted by
the floor anmendnent to HB 210, an unintended consequence was
that the reference to those m sdenmeanor crines - which also had
three-year civil statute of limtations - was renoved as well.

MS. FINLEY sai d:
When the floor anendnent canme in and referred only to

felony [sexual abuse and sexual abuse of a mnor]
crinmes, those m sdeneanors fell back, as nearly as |

can tell, into the two-year statute of limtations for
torts in general. That was not a problem but there
was another statute, which was actually expanded -
what used to be the three-year statute of limtations
and which no |onger works because it's no |longer a
three-year statute of Ilimtations for all of those
cases - and that is the one that is anmended in

[Section 2, AS 09.10.140(b)].

It says an action based on a claim of sexual abuse
under AS 09.55.650 -- and if you go to 650, there are
a lot of sexual abuse cases there. Most of them are

felonies, a few of them are m sdeneanors. The
felonies -- that's really no l|onger relevant because
there is no statute of limtations for felonies any
nore. However -- so that is why | added this: "that

is not otherwise allowed under AS 09.10.060(c)", to
make it clear that if any of those 650 sexual abuse
crines are felonies and covered by 060(c), this is
irrel evant because there's no statute of limtations
at all.

Nunber 0411

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked why that necessitated a change
fromthree years to two years as is proposed by Section 2.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2002



M5. FINLEY said she believed it is because the statute of
limtations for those m sdeneanors listed in [AS 09.55.650] is
now two years due to the floor anmendnent. Al t hough the fl oor
anendnent said that any [felony sexual abuse of a mnor or
felony sexual assault crimes] has no statute of limtations, the
question renains: What is the civil statute of limtations for
m sdeneanor [sexual abuse of a mnor or msdeneanor sexua
assault] crines?

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the intent of that floor
amendnent to HB 210 was to lift the statute of limtations for
felony [sexual abuse of a mnor or felony sexual assault]
crines, not to ~change the statute of limtations for
m sdenmeanors. He added that the standing statute of limtations
for m sdeneanors, prior to the enactnent of the floor anendnent,
was three years. Thus, he opined, there is no reason for it to
revert to a two-year statute of limtations.

MS. FINLEY expl ained that since the floor anmendnent repealed and
reenacted AS 09.10.060(c), there is no longer any reference to
t hose m sdeneanor crines nor a statute of limtations for them

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked whether the commttee was free to
anend HB 297.

MS. FINLEY indicated that the commttee could do so as long as
"we're not making policy decisions.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ surm sed, then, that the commttee
could amend Section 2 so that it said three years instead of
t wo.

M5. FINLEY said that would be fine except that the problem is

that Section 2 does not set a statute of limtations at three
years; I nst ead, it iIs an exception to the statute of
limtations. She said that she would be perfectly happy to

remove Section 2 from HB 375 if the legislature would rather
address this issue in a conprehensive nanner via other
| egi sl ati on. She nentioned that she would prefer the latter
because AS 09.10.060(c) no longer defines sexual abuse, which
al so causes her concern.

CHAIR ROKEBERG nentioned that the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee already has a full cal endar.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he would be willing to report HB
375 fromcomittee and allow Ms. Finley to fix it.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 13, 2002



Nunmber 0647

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked whet her t here m ght be a
constitutional problem with anending HB 375 if [Article 11,
Section 13] could be interpreted to nean that revisor bills
cannot address policy issues.

M5. FINLEY said yes; "I don't like to have anything that sets
policy in a revisor's bill for that reason" as well as others.
Legi sl ation addressing policy ought to get a different kind of
review than revisor's bills get, she added. Ms. Finley

reiterated that she would be happy to renove Section 2 if the
commttee wants to focus on this issue in a nore conprehensive
way.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked whet her renoving Section 2 would reinstate
a three-year statute of limtations.

MS. FINLEY said that even if Section 2 were anended to read
three years instead of tw years, there is not a three-year
statute of limtations el sewhere.

CHAI R ROKEBERG surm sed that Ms. Finley's recomendati on would
be to renove Section 2 from HB 375 and use a separate bill to
address the issue of a civil statute of limtations on these
m sdeneanor cri nmes.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noted that there is other sexual assault
| egislation that mght serve as a vehicle for addressing this
i ssue.

M5. FINLEY noted that the revisor's bill is wusually passed
fairly early in the session so that other bills that anend the
sane sections enconpassed in the revisor's bill wll override

it.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN nentioned that if Section 2 were renpved
and no other legislation were passed to address the issue, there
woul d be no statute of limtations on these ni sdeneanor crines.

CHAl R ROKEBERG surm sed, then, that it would be better to | eave
Section 2 as is, and then if other legislation is passed that
addresses this issue, it would override Section 2.

Nunber 0921

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2002



M5. FINLEY then referred to Section 6 and said that it corrects
what originally mght have been a typographical error regarding
a reference to the federal food stamp program which has since
expanded beyond 7 U. S. C 2025. She nentioned that if she were
to attenpt to fix that reference this year, she would try to
include all of the federal statutory references pertaining to
the food stanp program O, she added, she could sinply do it
next year in another revisor's bill

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ nentioned that alternatively, t he
commttee could sinply track HB 375 as it goes through the
Senate to ensure that Section 6 is altered appropriately. He
noted that another option would be to anend Section 6 of HB 375
during a House floor session.

M5. FINLEY added that another possibility would be to have the
House Rules Standing Comrittee propose a comrittee substitute
(5.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal |l ed an at-ease from1:27 p.m to 1:29 p.m

M5. FINLEY, with regard to the food stanp issue, said that it is
really up to the conmttee; if the commttee wants to suggest
that Section 6 include references up through 7 U S.C. 2036, she
could do that. O, if the commttee preferred, she said that
Section 6 could remain intact until she pinpointed just which
references shoul d be included.

CHAIR ROKEBERG nentioned that the commttee could nake a
conceptual anmendnent. He asked Ms. Finley what her preference
woul d be.

MS. FINLEY said that since it is nerely a citation that would be
altered, a conceptual anendnent ought to be sufficient.

M5. FINLEY then drew the conmttee's attention to Sections 12
and 13, and noted that these sections pertain to the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging (ACoA). She explained that she had received
a note from [the ACoA] asking for nmore time in which to study
the ramfications of Sections 12 and 13. Ms. Finley said that
should [the ACoA] oppose these sections, they could be renoved
via a House Rules Standing Cormittee CS.

Number 1193

M5. FINLEY then referred to Section 1 and said it sinply
reflects what the revisors have been doing for at |east 16 years

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 13, 2002



in situations in which legislation has a specific effective date

but doesn't take effect until after that date because the
governor doesn't sign it, the governor signs it after the
effective date, or the veto is overridden. And al t hough her

predecessor treated those situations in the manner laid out in
Section 1, she opined that it really should be stated in statute
since "that is what we are doing." She nentioned that a bill
passed | ast year has engendered litigation regarding this issue,
but added that Section 1 would not affect the outcome of that
litigation; it would sinply be placing in statute the procedure
followed thus far. She relayed that that l|itigation revolves
around a man who was arrested the day after the governor signed
a bill that extended the |ook-back provision from five years to
ten years. The defendant has asserted that since the governor
signed the bill after the effective date listed in the bill, the
effective date would revert to 90 days after being signed.

CHAIR ROKEBERG asked whether Section 1 is making a policy
deci si on.

M5. FINLEY said that it is nerely putting into statute the
current practice; there is no actual change to how things are
done. In response to further questions, she said that this
practice was not instituted because of case law, it is sinply an
adm nistrative fiat because "the bills conme out and we have to
put an effective date on them and that's what we' ve done."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked whether the |egislature shouldn't
sinply wait and see what the courts determne with regard to
this issue.

CHAI R ROKEBERG said, "No, this is our bailiwck."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that the |egislature m ght
| i ke what the court arrives at or that the court m ght suggest
sonething that inspires the legislature to act accordingly. He
opined that it would be prudent to see what the courts had to
say before sonething is placed in statute that nmay later turn
out to be in conflict.

CHAI R ROKEBERG said he could accept that argunment in certain
ci rcunstances but not with regard to the legislature's power to
stipulate an effective date. He then asked M. Finley to
confirmthat Section 1 would not have any inpacts on the ongoing
litigation.

Number 1456

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 13, 2002



M5. FINLEY said that there would certainly be no |egal inpact,
adding that in that particular case, she has already provided an
affidavit regarding how such a situation has been handled in the
past . She suggested that the court would nost likely rule one
of two ways; either the legislation takes affect the day after
bei ng signed, or after the 90 days has el apsed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES opined that the court would be nost |ikely
rule in favor of the current practice.

CHAI R ROKEBERG said that the court probably would, particularly
if it is placed in statute via Section 1 of HB 375.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he wanted to applaud Ms. Finley for al
her work on the arduous job of revising the statutes.

M5. FINLEY, in response to a question, clarified that in the
aforenentioned litigation, the defendant was arrested on the
effective date, which started at 12:01 a.m the day after the
| egi sl ation was signed into |law. She added that the tinme of day
a | aw becones effective is specified in Section 1 of HB 375.

M5. FINLEY, returning to the issue of Section 6, asked: "Did
the commttee want a CS on the conceptual anendnent expanding
the food stanp [citation] or not?"

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that the conmttee had not yet addressed
that issue but would discuss it now

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN surm sed that any change to Section 6 would
not be changing policy; rather, such a change would sinply be
conformng the statute to reflect the proper federal citations,
and would be well within Ms. Finley's purview.

CHAIR ROKEBERG suggested that the conmttee refrain from
anmending Section 6 at this time, and asked that as HB 375 goes
through the process, M. Finley report back to the conmttee
wi th any reconmendati ons for appropriate changes.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN added that any changes could be made before
HB 375 is reported fromthe House Rules Standing Commttee.

Number 1722

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report HB 375 out of commttee
wi th individual recomrendati ons and the acconpanying zero fisca

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 13, 2002



not e. There being no objection, HB 375 was reported from the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

SB 6 - MBI LE HOVE PARK EVI CTI ON NOTI CE

Nunber 1731

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the next order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 6(FIN), "An Act relating to required
notice of eviction to nobile hone park dwellers and tenants
before redevel opnent of the park." He noted that there is a
proposed commttee substitute (CS) available for the commttee
to consi der

Nunber 1750

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLIS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor, said
that through the work that the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee has done, the proposed CS is a better product. As
background, he said that [the concept of] SB 6 was brought to
him by the Catholic Archdi ocese of Anchorage, the United Wy,
and representatives of Catholic Social Services after hundreds
of people from his comunity were nade honeless in a single
nobi | e- hone- park redevel opnent project. Relaying the concern of
the social services agencies and the churches in Anchorage, he
sai d:

If we didn't have better policies toward nobile hone
park evictions, as the econony grows and people find
better use for the land and hope to redevelop it for
hi gher and better uses - especially comercial
devel opment - [there would be] ... a significant
reduction in the housing stock for [|owinconme or
af fordable housing, [and] a lot of people could be
honel ess.

SENATOR ELLIS noted that the people who could becone honel ess
are di sabl ed people, "lowincone people,” and elderly folks, and
that their becom ng honeless would lead to all kinds of social
ills and welfare dependency. Therefore, he said, "W as a
comunity and as a state should try and be nore proactive about
this [issue]." He nentioned that SB 6 passed the Senate with
bi parti san support, and that the original SB 6 was a |arger,
nore expansive proposal that would have changed the nobile hone

eviction-notice requirenment to 365 days - currently that
requirenent is 180 days - unless the devel oper paid up to $5, 000
of actual, docunented expenses for relocation of the nobile

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 13, 2002



hone. He relayed that the devel opers that spoke in favor of
[that version of] SB 6 thought that [option] was a good way to
satisfy their obligations and enable them get on wth their
projects even though actual relocation costs are significantly
greater than $5, 000.

SENATOR ELLIS noted that when SB 6 "cane over to the House,"
Chair Rokeberg had relayed his concerns regarding private
property rights and snaller nobile hone park owners across the
state. After hearing those concerns, Senator Ellis said that he
worked with the "church folks,” the nobile honme park folks, and
t he devel opers, and cane up with the proposed CS.

Number 1880

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for SB 6, version 22-LS0216\W Kurtz, 2/11/02
as a work draft. There being no objection, Version Wwas before
the comm ttee.

SENATOR ELLIS relayed that Chair Rokeberg had suggested that
i nstead of blanketing the entire state with the requirenent for
devel opers to pay conpensation or give a year's notice, SB 6
could be sinplified so that it proposes a 270-day notice
requi renent, which is less than the 365-day requirenent that the
Senate proposed and greater than the 180-day requirenent in
current statute, and that any |ocal governnent that would I|ike
to set up its own relocation fund be allowed to do so through
| ocal ordinance. Senator Ellis explained that |ocal governnents
could work out the details of how such a fund would be financed.
Surprisingly, he noted, sonme of the private sector folks said
that they would like the state to set up the fund with state
dollars so that devel opers wouldn't have to pay any sort of fee
or pay for any change in the assessed val uati on.

SENATOR ELLIS noted that Chair Rokeberg "shot that down rather
qui ckly, and said there will be no state fund because there is
no |ikelihood of new state noney for such a program™

CHAI R ROKEBERG remarked that that is old "Al aska-think" - that
the state will be able to pay for everything.
SENATOR ELLIS explained that since there wll be no state-

adm nistered fund and no state funding, Version W provides for
the option of allowng |ocal governnments to set up their own
funds at the local Ievel. Hence this is not an un-funded
mandate; it is just an option giving l|ocal governnments the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 13, 2002



ability to create their own fund if they decide that there
should be conpensation to folks noving on to other housing
arrangenents. He also pointed out that Version W in addition
to providing a 270-day-eviction-notice requirenent, prohibits
eviction of a nobile honme park resident during the wnter
nont hs; everybody on all sides of this issue agreed that it is
hard enough to nove a nobile hone w thout having to do so in the
Wi nter.

CHAIR ROKEBERG offered that the funding for a local relocation
fund could conme from the revenue differential between the prior
zoning and the new zoning, as well as from contributions nmade by
the comunity itself. He noted, therefore, that this |oca
funding option is nostly applicable to larger comunities
al though smaller comunities could set up such a fund as well
He mentioned that he still has concerns with changing the notice
requi renent from 180 days to 270 days because that would then
becone the standard for eviction notices.

SENATOR ELLIS said that he believed that the 270-day requirenent

would only apply to nobile honme parks. The current 180-day
requirenent for all other types of evictions would renain the
sane. In response to questions, he reiterated that in addition

to the 270-day requirenent for nobile home parks, no one could
be evicted from a nobile home park during the w nter nonths,
which is a prohibition not currently in |aw He noted that a
nunber of states have a 365-day requirenent, as was proposed in
a Senate version of SB 6, and that alnost all states have
statutes relating specifically to nobile hone park evictions
because of the special nature of nobile hone parks and their
redevel opnent .

Number 2124

TYSON FI CK, Staff to Senator Johnny Ellis, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor of SB 6, added that changing the current
180-day requirenent to 270 days is a separate issue from
prohibiting an eviction during the wnter nonths. Current
statute does not make any provision regarding what tinme of year
sonmeone can be evicted, he added.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that if Version W were anended back to a
180-day requirenent, it would not affect the wntertine
prohi bition.

Nunber 2158

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 13, 2002



BEN MARSH, Manager, Alaska Mnufactured Housing Association
(AMHA), testified via teleconference and said that the AVHA
feels that it represents the nobile hone industry to a large
extent. He said that after |ooking over Version W the AVHA has
sonme comments. He explained that he polled his nenbers and
found that there "is sone heartburn over the 270-day notice"
because nenbers feel that it creates a hardship on anybody who
owns this type of land and needs to have it [redevel oped]. To
have a 270-day notice requirenent pushes things quite far into
the future and devel opers are less likely to proceed. He added
that the AWMHA [passed] a resolution that favors the current
statutory 180-day noti ce.

MR. MARSH said that the AVHA does not have any objection to the
quit date being limted to between My 1st and Cctober 15th.
"That would seem to be reasonable, and everybody can live with
that,"” he added. He noted, however, that the AVMHA doesn't see
any real value in having the |anguage that says: "a
municipality may establish a nobile home relocation fund...."
He opined that a municipality doesn't need perm ssion from the
state to establish such a fund, and therefore the |anguage is
superfluous, particularly since the state is no longer going to
require a developer to pay $5,000 to every tenant as was
proposed in an earlier version of SB 6.

MR. MARSH urged the commttee to be cautious in placing too many
restrictions on people's property rights. On the issue of
municipalities establishing relocation funds, he said that this
concept is very inportant to [the AVHA], and that they sincerely
hope that such can be done "although we don't have any real hope
that it will happen this year [but] maybe it'll happen over a
period of time if we bend our efforts in that direction.” He
added that the [AWVHA] hopes that there will be sone way for the
state to participate in this problem "it's a social problem and
it shouldn't be placed entirely on the shoulders of nobile court
owners. "

MR. MARSH, in closing, noted that he is not aware of any new
nobil e hone courts being created in the last 12 years, and that
restrictions and regul ati ons such as those found in SB 6 tend to
di scourage anybody from doing so. Mobil e home courts are an
i nportant part of affordable housing in Al aska, he remarked, and
there is a real shortage of npbile hone spaces at the present
time. "We see these nobile hone courts disappearing from sight,
and we don't know where people are going to put nobile hones if
they all [close down due to redevel opnent]," he added.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 13, 2002



Nunber 2378

ANGELA LI STON, Catholic Archdi ocese of Anchorage, testified via
tel econference and nentioned that she was on the nobile hone
task force in Anchorage. She noted that she has worked with the
tenants and with the [nobile hone] park owners in trying to cone
up wth sone solution to this problem "W did originally
propose the relocation fund,” which all the parties - the
tenants, the park owners - were willing to contribute to. She
said that as SB 6 stands now, [the parties] absolutely support
the quit date provision prohibiting evictions during the w nter
nont hs.

M5. LISTON said, with regard to changing the notice from 180
days to 270 days, that if the state is not creating a relocation
fund, then the tenants absolutely need at |east 270 days. And
[that time franme] is needed not just to relocate but also to
secure the funds that are necessary to make that relocation
happen. She opined that seven nonths is probably the |[east
[anobunt of tinme] that would be necessary to raise $5,6000 for
rel ocation. She noted that she would feel a lot better about it
if "we had sonme information fromthe nunicipalities that in fact
the funds would be set up. She said that she supports the quit
date provision as witten, and asked that the 270-day notice
provi sion remain in place.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noted that during his service on the

assenbly, "this was al ways a maj or i ssue and very
controversial." He said he recalled that wth the bigger
devel opnents, the city was requiring the "developers to pay to
hel p nove sone of the nobile hones; ... | thought is was up to
$5, 000. "

M5. LISTON clarified that that was never required of the
devel opers; they were sinply encouraged to do it.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that this decision was reached during
comunity council neetings. He noted, however, that not every
devel oper "has as deep a pocket" as those that were able to help
wi th rel ocation costs.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER indicated that he agreed with M. Liston
regardi ng the need for the 270-day notice provision.

TAPE 02-17, SIDE B
Nunber 2490

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 13, 2002



JEVEL JONES, Director, Departnent of Health and Human Services
(DHHS), Municipality of Anchorage, testified via tel econference
and said that the DHHS has certainly had a great deal of
experience with honel ess issues, with affordable housing issues,
and specifically with "the first notice of a novenent with the
Al askan Village trailer park." The DHHS was also involved in
the establishnment of the nobile home task force, she said,
addi ng that she participated in many of its di scussions.

M5. JONES, referring to Version W said that it is nmuch nore
pal atabl e and workable for the nunicipality, and that the DHHS
encourages its passage. She remarked that the DHHS, too, is
concerned about notices [to quit the property] being given
during a period of tinme in which the end of that period is in
the winter. Mving a nobile hone is, at best, a very difficult
and expensive process, she noted. Many people living in nobile
hones are there because they can't afford any other form of
housi ng. In addition, nobile hone living does afford a way for
many people to achieve the Anmerican dream of having a place of
their own; nobile hones certainly do hold that prom se for many
peopl e, and the DHHS supports that.

M5. JONES noted, as M. Marsh did, that there aren't new nobile
hone parks bei ng devel oped, and that she has been nade aware of
another nobile home park - Lahonda Trailer Court - in the
Anchorage area "that wll be going away." She nentioned,
however, that in addition to the |ack of suitable new | ocations,
even if there were to be a relocation fund, many nobile hones
are in such bad condition and so old that they could not be
noved regardl ess of how nmuch noney is spent to nove them they
would just fall apart. She suggested that a hunman i npact
statenment could assist the nmunicipality in determning the
overall effects that sonme of these redevel opnents have on the
comunity.

M5. JONES indicated a preference for the |anguage in Version W
that allows but does not nandate nunicipalities to establish
| ocal relocation funds, although she is not sure yet where "al
of those dollars" would cone from She noted that the |oca
municipality, the DHHS, and the planning departnment have been
working with - and will continue to work with - sone of the
smaller nobile honme parks should they becone candidates for
redevel opnent .

Nunber 2302

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 13, 2002



SENATOR ELLIS said that he appreciates all the work that M.
Jones has done on this issue. After noting that M. Marsh has
indicated a preference for the 180-day-notice requirenent, and
that Ms. Liston prefers the 270-day requirenent, Senator Ellis
asked Ms. Jones what her "take on that" is, in terns of how nuch
tinme |lower-incone folks need to plan and save up noney for a
rel ocation.

M5. JONES said that the DHHS has not given a lot of thought to
that issue, but she personally thinks that the |onger period of
time would be the nost helpful, particularly for |owincone
peopl e. Because the average cost of nobving a nobile hone ranges
bet ween $5, 000 and $8,000, and even if noney is available froma
rel ocation fund, tenants nust still raise quite a bit of noney,
which takes tine; therefore, 270 days is a reasonable anmount of
time, she opined.

MR. MARSH added that 270 days is nuch better than the 365 days
that was proposed in an earlier version of SB 6.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cl osed public testinony on SB 6.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER opined that SB 6 is a good bill, and that
the 270-day requirenent is a good conprom se that everybody can
live with.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed that SB 6 is a good bill. He
added, however, that based on personal experience, he thinks
"180 days is doable," particularly since l|language in the bill
allows for either the lease or the municipality to stipulate a
| onger tinme frane. The way Version Wis currently witten, he
noted, a tenant could have a notice period of 270 days plus a
Wi nter.

CHAI R ROKEBERG added that that would anmobunt to over a year.
REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL opined that lowering the notice period
back to 180 days would be fine. He recounted that when he had
to nove from a nobile home park in the early '"80s, it cost him
$2,800 to nove his trailer; he also had to neet a notice period
of | ess than 100 days, which was tough, but he did it.

Nunber 2136

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL nmade a notion to adopt Anmendnent 1: on
page 2, line 6, delete "270" and insert "180".

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 13, 2002



Number 2130

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ected. He said that it seens to him
that the people working on this issue have already conprom sed,
and the result is the 270-day-notice peri od.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that the existing statute has a 180-day

notice period, and that 270 days is nine nonths. The heart of
the bill, he opined, is the restriction on giving notice during
the w nter nonths. He reiterated that the 270-day period

coupled with the wintertinme restriction could result in a tine
frame that is |onger than a year.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that 270 days is a
conprom se from 365 days.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that he agrees with Representative
Ber kowi t z. According to his experience in Anchorage, he
rel ayed, the longer the notice period, the better, "because we
are tal king about | owinconme people here, and a |ot of them have
been in these places for 30 years - all their lives - and nowto
all of sudden say, 'Ckay, you' ve got to get up and nove,' that
in itself is very traumatic to them" From havi ng wat ched the
progression of SB 6 in the Senate, he recounted, the devel opers
seened to be okay with 365 days since it takes awhile to arrange
for financing and contractors; therefore, 270 days is doable and
is a conprom se conpared to 365 days.

CHAIR ROKEBERG said that from a comerci al r eal estate
standpoi nt, he disagrees with Representative Meyer on the issue
of howlong it mght take to nobilize a project.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER offered that since no devel opers have cone
forth to testify, they nust not be in opposition to the 270-day-
noti ce requirenent.

CHAIR ROKEBERG surm sed that the bigger developers that did

testify during previous hearings of SB 6 - the "deep-pocket
devel opers” - were just happy to be able to go forth with their
projects, but nost of the developers that will be affected by SB
6 are small in conparison

Nunber 1914

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES indicated agreenent with Chair Rokeberg,
and remarked that with the shrinking of the econony, the nunber
of investors has al so decreased. She suggested that it wouldn't

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 13, 2002



be the big developers that w | | be taking on future
redevel opnent projects; it will be the smaller devel opers. She
said that she did not think that 270 days, by itself, is too
long a period of time, but when coupled with the wntertine
restriction, it can becone an extensive period of tine. She
opined that aside from going to a 365-day provision, which
woul dn't be encunbered by a seasonal restriction, 180 days is
the nmaxinmum that wuld be needed when coupled wth the
wntertime restriction. She said that her inclination is to go
to the shorter period of tinme - 180 days.

CHAI R ROKEBERG said that it is conceivable that there could be a
notice period of [over] 15 nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that according to his experience,
devel opers "pretty much have this figured out, so that the 270
days woul d be the maxi num they would give notice so that it is
the 270 days and it includes the winter nonths."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES reiterated that she thinks 180 days is
better so as not to di scourage devel opnent.

SENATOR ELLIS pointed out that the current statutory tinmefrane
of 180 days has not proved adequate in the situations considered
by the task force. The genesis for SB 6 was that 180 days was
not sufficient for folks to save up enough noney to nove their
nobile homes and avoid going to the honeless shelter and
becom ng welfare cases, he added. And while not all of the
residents of nobile honme parks are |owinconme, a significant
proportion of them are, and many tend to be elderly, he noted.
And al though there mght be a better nunber than 270, he said

180 days has not proved adequate.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that the difference between the
original SB 6 and Version Wis that the latter includes "the
municipality in that discussion,” so if the nunicipality decides
that the tine frane is not |ong enough, it can be extended.

Nunmber 1666

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, after noting that he has been invol ved
in coomercial real estate transactions and is interested in the
econom ¢ devel opnent of Al aska, offered that fundanentally, SB 6
is about protecting people who live in nobile home parks, and
that the discussion heard thus far - that 180 days is adequate -
seens to focus on the developers' side of the equation. He
conti nued:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 13, 2002



One of our responsibilities [is] to bring a little
bal ance to this debate, and the balance side of what
the developers require is what the nobile hone
residents require. Representative Coghill spoke of
his own exanple, and Representative Coghill, just by
dint of being here, has denonstrated that he has sone
wherewithal, and | don't think that everybody who's in
a nobile honme park, at least not in my experience, has
the ability to get up and nove easily: peopl e on
fixed incone, people ... with pets who mght have a
difficult tine. We ought to be mndful of the fact
that these are tough economic tinmes out there for a
good nunber of our constituents, and we ought to be
careful that we don't put them in a position where
they don't have a place to go. So | would suggest
that while you' re factoring in whether 180 days or 270
days is appropriate, you think about what serves the
peopl e - the common peopl e.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES opined that what Representative Berkowtz
said "is very real and is our concern.” Nonethel ess, she added,
Alaska is a big state; as long as municipalities have the
ability to alter the tinme period, as is proposed in Version W
t hat issue should be decided at the |ocal |evel.

SENATOR ELLIS asked Chair Rokeberg to hold SB 6 in order to
gather nore information regarding the "interplay between the
| andl or d- t enant | aw, whi ch S a state Ilaw, and the
municipalities' ability to add on to or override the state
| andl ord-tenant law in terns of nobile home park evictions.”

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ acknow edged that if the provision in
SB 6 which says a nunicipality can extend the notice period is
in conflict with existing state law, it could create problens.

CHAI R ROKEBERG acknow edged that that [provision] is anbiguous.
He noted that Representative Coghill's notion to adopt Anendnent
1 is still before the conmttee.

Number 1450

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ made a notion to lay on the table the
notion to adopt Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ withdrew the notion to lay on the table
the notion to adopt Anendnment 1.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 13, 2002



Nunber 1436
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL wi thdrew the notion to adopt Anendnent 1.
CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that SB 6 woul d be held over.

HB 381 - FAILURE TO STOP FOR PEACE OFFI CER

Nunmber 1396

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the |ast order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 381, "An Act relating to the crime of failure
to stop at the direction of a peace officer; and providing for
an effective date."

Number 1364

HEATHER M NOBREGA, Staff to Representative Norman Rokeberg,
House Judiciary Standing Committee, Alaska State Legislature,
presented HB 381 on behalf of the conmttee. She explained that
HB 381 would clarify exactly when a person can be charged wth
first-degree failure to stop at the direction of a police
of ficer. She noted that currently, there are two degrees of
this offense. Second-degree failure to stop occurs when the
driver doesn't realize that there is police officer behind
hi mi her and so fails to stop right away but then ultimtely does

st op. [First]-degree failure to stop occurs when the driver
fails to stop and violates a traffic law - as defined in AS
28.15.261 - or conmts another crime - as defined in AS
11.81. 900.

M5. NOBREGA said that the change proposed by HB 381 stipul ates
that the offense of first-degree failure to stop would occur
when the driver fails to stop and violates AS 28.35.040, the
reckl ess driving statute. She said that because the terns
"traffic law' and "another crine" are so broad, there are a | ot
of people being charged with the crinme of first-degree failure
to stop just because they either went over the speed limt in
the process of failing to stop, or conmtted sonme other m nor
crime such as not wearing a seat belt or [driving a] vehicle
wi t hout [working] lights. She offered that the intent of this
change is to clarify that first-degree failure to stop really
requires sonething above and beyond a basic traffic |aw
violation; it requires a violation of the reckless driving
statute.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 13, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ surm sed, then, that if an officer sees
soneone who is driving recklessly, which, he added, i's
oftentimes used as a lesser included offense for driving while
intoxicated (DW), and then fails to stop right away at the
direction of a police officer, then that person is subject to a
charge of felony el uding.

Nunber 1201

M5. NOBREGA said that is correct because that person didn't
st op. If that person had stopped right away, the charge would
sinply be msdeneanor reckless driving. She added that it

becomes a felony because that person is commtting two crines:
he/ she is eluding and driving recklessly.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how many of these types of cases
were anti ci pat ed.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that the conmittee packets contained
statistical information. Referring to that information, he
nmentioned that in 1999, there were 75 charges; in 2000, there
were 162 charges; and in 2001, there were 183 charges, not all
of whi ch have been adj udi cat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the [58] felony convictions
in 2000, with an average one-year jail sentence at a cost of
$30, 000- $40, 000 each, woul d have had a | arge fiscal inpact.

M5. NOBREGA, in response to questions, nentioned that HB 381 has
a zero fiscal note fromthe Departnent of |aw.

Nunmber 1098

DEL SM TH, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), said that he testified a
couple of years ago on the bill that becane the current felony
eluding statute. He said that his recollection of his testinony
was that the DPS would use that statute only for the nost
egregi ous circunstances, which he envisioned as occurring after
a person was already commtting the m sdeneanor offense of
eluding a police officer and then creating sonme public safety
[ hazard]. He acknow edged, however, that:

It turns out, in looking at sonme of the cases that
have evolved since then, that [the] commobn sense that
| counted on has not carried through in each and every
case. So | certainly agree that there is a problem

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- February 13, 2002



currently, with the application, as you can see from

the escalating nunmbers ... in 2001. The convi ctions,
| mght point out, are substantially lower ... in
2001. But ... those cases can go up to 120 days out
[for] trial or longer, so that's not conplete. But

the fact that there's 183 felony arrests for that -
one every other day, basically - does concern ne, and
for that reason | wanted to be here to try to see what
changes could be done that nmake sone sense but stil
provi de sone public protection....

One other thing, if | could: ... there was sone
reference to seatbelt violations; that's not true.
You have to [have] at |east a noving [violation] under
current | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked for a hypothetical exanple.

MR SMTH recounted a situation in which a vehicle left the
dowmntown area and the officer alleges in his police report that
[ when] he activated his energency lights, the vehicle
accelerated rapidly to ten mles an hour over the speed limt,
made a left hand turn wthout a signal, ultimtely stopped
within a mle and a quarter, and the driver was charged wth
felony eluding. "I thought that was very inappropriate and [1]
expressed that opinion."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ surm sed, then, that the underlying
of fence was a driving violation.

MR SMTH said that in his professional opinion, he thought the
maxi mum t hat individual should have received in that particular
ci rcunstance was perhaps a speeding ticket for going ten mles
an hour over the speed |imt, and perhaps a ticket for [failure
to use] a left hand turn signal, but not even m sdeneanor
el udi ng. And while that charge has since been reduced, he
noted, it was originally a felony arrest. He said that although
he has not |ooked at every police report in the state, he is
concerned that there are other simlar cases.

Number 0890

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN recalled a case in Kenai in which a person
driving on a state road refused to pull over for a "federal fish
and wildlife protection officer.”™ This person was charged wth
felony eluding because he went ten mles over the speed limt
and did not stop for the federal officer.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- February 13, 2002



MR SMTH said that he recalled that case, which was ultimately
di sm ssed, adding that he thought that that, too, was an
i nproper application of the current statute. He nentioned that
shortly after that case, the Departnent of Law issued its
screening attorneys [a nenorandun] on the proper application of
that |aw He reiterated that the charge of felony eluding is
intended to apply in only the nost egregious of circunstances.

CHAI R RCKEBERG noted that a proposed anmendnent suggested by the
Departnment of Law has been distributed to nenbers. Thi s
proposed anendnent [which was discussed but not adopted] reads
[original punctuation provided]:

Section 1. 28.35.182 (a) is anended to read:

(a) A person conmts the offense of failure to
stop at the direction of a peace officer in the first
degree if the person violates (b) of this section,
and, during the comm ssion of that offense

(1) the person violates AS 28.35.040 [A
TRAFFIC LAW OR COWM TS ANOTHER CRIME. IN TH' S
SUBSECTI ON,
(1) "CRIME'" HAS THE MEANING G VEN IN AS
11. 81. 900;
(2) "TRAFFIC LAW HAS THE MEANING G VEN IN
AS 28. 15. 261];
(2) the person is subject to an arrest
warrant issued by a federal, state, or |ocal court;
(3) as a result of the person's driving
(A) an accident occurs;
(B) any person suffers serious physical

injury; or

(C any person, including a pedestrian
or bicyclist, nust take evasive action to prevent an
accident or injury;

(4) the person is conmtting vehicle theft;

(5) the person is 1in possession of an
unl awful controll ed substance; or

(6) the person is on probation or parole
supervi sion for a felony of fense.

Number 0711

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Legal Services
Section-Juneau, Crimnal D vision, Departnment of Law (DQL),
noted that she, too, was present during discussions of the
| egi sl ation that became the current statute, adding that at the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- February 13, 2002



time, she thought that that Ilegislation was too broad. She
opined that it is a good idea to limt its application. She
noted, however, that she is concerned that Iimting it to
reckless driving is going a little bit too far in the opposite
direction, which is why the DOL is suggesting the aforenentioned
amendnent that would include, in addition to reckless driving

other [circunstances] that often result in dangerous driving or
bringi ng harmto people and property.

M5. CARPENETI pointed out that in order for a person to commt
first-degree eluding, he/she nust first commt second-degree
eluding, which is "knowingly" failing to stop rather than just
not stopping. She nentioned that there have been occasi ons when
she has driven for sonme time wthout noticing that a police
officer has been signaling for her to stop. Those were not
i nstances of eluding because "you have to know that sonebody is
trying to pull you over, and you have to ignore them and go on,"
she added.

MS. CARPENETI explained that first-degree eluding, as proposed
by the suggested anendnent, involves knowng that a police
officer is trying to pull "you" over, and, after ignoring the
police officer, going on to commt the crine of reckless driving
or doing several other things that the DOL thinks would give
rise to dangerous conditions - for exanple, if a person ignores
a police officer because he/she has an "arrest warrant out";
causes sonebody to suffer serious physical injury as a result of

the driving; is in the process of conmtting vehicle theft; is
in possession of an unlawful controlled substance; or is on
probation or parole supervision for a felony offense. She
remarked that the DOL thinks the suggested anendnent is a good
conprom se: it is somewhere in the mddl e between a noving
violation and driving recklessly after ignoring a police
of ficer.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, referring to [paragraph] (2) of the
suggested anendnent, said that this |anguage presunes that the
person is aware that he/she is subject to an arrest warrant. He
added that it seenms to himthat if the person is aware of the
warrant, he/she would be subject to the ternms of AS 11.56. 700,
which is resisting or interfering with arrest and which includes
creating a substantial risk of physical injury to any person.
Ther ef or e, he said, it appears that [paragraph (2)] is
duplicating an existing statute.

Nunber 0447

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- February 13, 2002



MS. CARPENETI said that she understands resisting arrest under
this circunstance to be nore personal and not in the context of
a vehicle, though she acknow edged that Representative Berkow tz
makes a good point and she will consider it further.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL, referring to [paragraph] (3)(C of the
suggested anmendnent, opined that this activity 1is already
covered under the negligent driving statute, located in AS
28. 35.

M5. CARPENETI replied that when the DOL adopted its screening
policy for felony eluding, one of the directions to the
screening attorneys was that felony eluding should only apply to
serious cases. She pointed out that the | anguage in both HB 381
and the suggested anendnent refers only to reckless driving - AS
28.35.040 - and does not include negligent driving. Therefore,
while the concept of [paragraph] (3)(C) of the suggested
anmendnent is included in the negligent driving statute, it does
not enconpass all aspects of negligent driving. In response to
a question, she noted that while the crine of reckless driving
is a msdeneanor, the crime of negligent driving is sinply a
violation. She added that reckless driving is "kind of a hybrid
m sdemeanor”; it involves a $1,000 fine, as is found for a class
B m sdeneanor, and a year of jail tinme, as is found for a class
A m sdeneanor

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, on the topic of [paragraph (3)(C] of
the suggested amendnent, said that it seenms to him that this
concept is also swept up in AS 11.41.250 - reckl ess endanger nent
- which involves creating a substantial risk of serious physical
injury to another person and which, he opined, is underutilized.

M5. CARPENETI acknow edged that that is an interesting argunent
because [reckless endangernent] requires the culpable nental
state of reckless, whereas the concept of [paragraph (3)(O]
enbodi es negligent behavior. She added that in AS 28, negligent
driving does not include a substantial risk; it nerely refers to
an [unjustifiable] risk that "constitutes a deviation from the
standard of care that a reasonable person would observe in the
situation.” Therefore, it's a little bit different than the
cul pable nmental states included in Representative Berkowitz's
reference to reckless in AS 11, which involves a "substantial
risk", knowing that sonething is a substantial risk, and then
di sregarding that risk, as opposed to negligent, which involves
not understanding the risk.

Number 0197

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- February 13, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ, referring to [paragraphs (4) and (5)],
said that in a way, those itens seem redundant and would nerely
provide "a way of bootstrapping” the crine of eluding into a
f el ony.

M5. CARPENETI noted that a person who has drugs in his/her
vehicle is nore apt to elude and cause harmto ot her people

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked how the police officer, nerely by follow ng
soneone, woul d know t hat he/she was in possession of drugs.

MR SMTH surmised that first the person would have to be
arrested for msdeneanor eluding, then, if drugs were found
during the arrest, he/she would be charged with fel ony el uding.

CHAI R ROKEBERG not ed, however, that the person could be charged
with other crinmes and, thus, wouldn't need to be charged wth
fel ony el udi ng.

MR. SM TH pointed out that the intention is to cut down on the
nunber of people who decide that they need to try to get away,
so that there are not people careening through the streets.

| want themto pull over and say, "Fine, |'ve already
got a warrant,” or "l've got drugs in here, why don't
|  just go wth that m sdeneanor possession of
marijuana as opposed to creating a felony here". Now

that presunes, of course, that they pay attention to
what the legislature has done in the way of passing
| aws, and [that] they know the | aw.

TAPE 02-18, SIDE A
Number 0001

MR. SM TH conti nued: "I guess |I'm |ooking for ways that would
persuade people that it's better to stop, take your nedicine,
and not create a problem™

VS. CARPENETI i ndicated that in creating the suggested
anendnent, the DOL was trying to envision circunstances where
peopl e would behave in a dangerous way after they notice that
they're being pulled over, and having drugs in the car or being
subject to an arrest warrant are things that would probably
cause people to go ahead and drive in a way that could be
harnful to other people.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- February 13, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ nentioned that this is presumng a
rational response in the crimnal mnd.

CHAI R ROKEBERG not ed that the suggested anendnent is basically a
| aundry list, and if "the conmttee agrees with the concept of
reckl ess as the base standard,” then, if the commttee wants to,
it could add other itens.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES opi ned that nost of the people who are out
there doing these dunb things don't have a clue what the

penalties are; those people are nerely being reactive. She
suggested that the nore "we try to tighten this down," the nore
it mght create other problens. She indicated that she has an

aversion to turning young people into felons early in their
lives, that she did not want to entrap anybody, and that she
wants to be cautious when going in "that direction.”

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that he is confortable with the reckless
st andar d. He nentioned, however, that although he is not
entirely opposed to the additional itens proposed by the
suggested anendnent, he does have concerns about sone of them
such as [paragraph (2)], which pertains to having an arrest
war r ant .

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ posited that [providing for] officer
safety and public safety are always at the forefront of what the
| egislature is trying to do. He added, however, that one of his
concerns is that when [crines] are escalated to felonies, it
mght, in a perverse way, encourage nore flight, which creates
nore risk. He said:

| would feel better able to help craft a bill if |
understood what the dinmensions of the problem were a
little bit nore. What ki nd of behavior, exactly, are
we trying to stop that we're [currently] wunable to
stop, and what's going on out there that requires us
to make these fol ks felons?

Number 0310

MR  SMTH provided an exanple: Recently, the Alaska State
Troopers received a report of a potential stolen vehicle |ocated
at the Palnmer Correctional Center. When the trooper arrived,

the vehicle was there and, ultimtely, an 18-year-old woman who
was from Anchorage junped in the stolen vehicle and took off.
When the troopers finally got her stopped after a 90-m | e-an-
hour chase toward Pal ner, they discovered that she was subject

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- February 13, 2002



to an arrest warrant, she was driving a stolen vehicle, she
didn't have a driver's license, and she was driving reckl essly.
He added that many tines when a person is finally pulled over
after eluding, the police officer discovers that there is a
warrant out on that person, or that it is a stolen vehicle, or
that the person is in possession of a controlled substance.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked how would turning the crinme of
eluding into a felony have helped in the prosecution of that
case.

MR. SM TH acknow edged that that defendant is subject to felony
charges anyway under the current |aw.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that that woman is subject
to "felony joy riding", a handful of msdeneanors, and the
second felony for eluding, which neans that if she ever does
anything bad in the future, she is "presunptive third."

CHAIR RCOKEBERG asked if that exanple qualified as "three
strikes."

MR SMTH said he did not think so in her case because she was
only 18.

M5. CARPENETI clarified that none of "these crines" is one that
woul d be considered under "three strikes and your out,” which is
only considered for what is defined as nost serious felonies.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ nentioned that he would be confortable
prosecuting a reckless driving case as an assault when the
defendant is truly driving recklessly. He added that if the
comunity condemation is out there, a prosecutor could get 12
people on a jury to agree wth that charge.

M5. CARPENETI noted that in ternms of presunptive sentencing,
these felonies would certainly count, but not for "three strikes
and your out."

Nunmber 0516

MR SMTH opined that it is no less a danger to be hurtling
through city streets in a 4,000-pound vehicle than it is for a
person to step outside of his/her downtown house and start
shooting a rifle. Bot h behavi ors endanger other people. He
added that the original intention of the current statute was to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- February 13, 2002



keep people from eluding to begin wth; however, that's not
qui te worked out as pl anned.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked why people who are wildly driving
around aren't charged with a felony assault, as would be that
case for sonmeone who is wldly shooting a rifle in a downtown
area. He said that it seenms to himthat the nub of the problem
centers on a policy decision within the DOL as to how it is
charging and prosecuting certain types of conduct. "The tools
are in the tool box to go after people, and that's one of the
reasons why we have broadly witten laws, is so we can take it
to a jury and see if the comunity agrees with that assessnent,”
he opi ned. And, although there are clearly sonme changes that
should be nade to the current law, rather than giving up on the
exi sting code and seeking an answer with sone epheneral statute,
"it would be better to just use what we've got and start
hanmeri ng people with it," he concl uded.

MR SM TH opined that the DOL has exercised the right kind of
discretion at the screening level; wunfortunately, he added,
people are being arrested as felons before the DOL can
intervene. He added that a solution mght be to forgo elevating

a charge of msdeneanor eluding to a felony until after a
decision is nmade by the district attorney at the screening
| evel . He noted, however, that it mght not be possible to

pl ace such a policy in statute, so there is the potential that
it wouldn't be applied consistently.

CHAI R ROKEBERG remarked that he is satisfied with HB 381 as is.
Nunber 0773

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noved to report HB 381 out of committee
[with individual recomendations and the acconpanying zero
fiscal note]. There being no objection, HB 381 was reported
fromthe House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

ADJ QURNVENT

Nunber 0801

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ nmade a notion to adjourn.

There being no objection, the House Judiciary Standing Commttee
neeting was adjourned at 3:00 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -31- February 13, 2002



